IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

SUPREME COURT NO. 2007-CP-02192-COA

WILLIE ROSS

VS.

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI



MOVANT/APPELLANT

RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

ISSUE ONE

Whether trial court exceeded its authority in imposing habitual enhanced sentence, which included a penalty not authorized by the normal sentencing provisions for the offense of burglary of a dwelling as a non-habitual offender, without allowing a jury of Appellant's peers to determine whether Appellant was, in fact, the type of habitual offender within the means which warranted and necessitated an enhanced sentence and whether prosecution met all required elements to prove habitual status where the enhancement of the sentence caused the sentence to exceed the statutory mandated limits of punishment. And whether trial court improperly sentenced to Appellant to an enhanced sentence, without parole, outside the normal sentencing limits under the statute which he was convicted under, without a jury having been permitted to determine enhancement eligibility but where court, setting without jury, arbitrarily imposed enhanced punishment without impaneling a jury to determine such issues.

ISSUE TWO:

Whether habitual portion of the sentence imposed upon Appellant is legal or constitutes a denial of due process of law, under the 5th and 14th Amendments to the United States Constitution and the Constitution of the State of Mississippi where the sentencing order was filed approximately two (2) days before the trial court signed such order.

ISSUE THREE:

Whether trial court erred in failing to conduct an evidentiary hearing before denying post conviction relief.

STATEMENT OF INCARCERATION

The Appellant is presently incarcerated and is being housed in the Mississippi Department of Corrections and assigned to the Kemper-Neshoba County Correctional Facility in Dekalb, Mississippi, in service of the prison term imposed. Appellant has been continuously confined in regards to such sentence since date of conviction and imposition of sentence by trial court..

STATEMENT OF CASE

Willie Ross, was indicted on February 24, 2000, in the Circuit Court of Lowndes County, Mississippi for the multiple count indictment for burglary. (R. 35)

Appellant, on May 23, 2002, after Appellant had negotiated entered into an agreement with the prosecution to plead guilty to 25 years as a non-habitual offender, the prosecution, on the same day and minutes after the agreed recommendation, filed a motion to amend the indictment to charge habitual status under Miss. Code Ann. §99-19-81. This information was thereafter changed in the plea agreement recommendation petition after it was actually signed. (R. 41)¹ The trial court subsequently granted the amendment. Following the plea, the Appellant was sentenced to a term of 25 years without parole as a habitual offender. In rendering

¹ The Petition to Enter Plea of Guilty actually contained 25 years MDOC before it was amended to add additional portion after the state filed the Motion to Amend the Indictment and after Ross had actually entered into the plea recommendation with the state.

such sentence the trial court never sought to convene a jury to determine proof of the elements required for habitual status. No jury heard or determined an facts regarding the enhancement of the sentence evidence. The order Amending the indictment was never filed until after Appellant was actually sentenced as a habitual offender on May 23, 2002. The clerk filed the sentencing order on May 23, 2002. The trial court signed the sentencing order on May 25, 2002. The proceedings in this case are illegal.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

The correct standard of review in this appeal is the direct appeal standard where Appellant has appealed the sentence imposed upon him rather than the plea and conviction.

In the instant case, the law dictates that the sentence of law where timeliness of sentence caused it to be fundamentally unfair and clearly an abuse of discretion. Incarceration imposed Miss. Code Ann. 47-7-34(2).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The sentencing proceedings conducted in this case were illegal where trial court was without lawful authority to conduct such proceedings when the sentence imposed exceeded the statutory mandated sentence since "without parole or early release" are not a part of the initial sentencing penalty statute under burglary. The jury should have been allowed to determine whether the state had proved the elements of the habitual status and whether a habitual sentence should be imposed. Additionally, the trial court committed plain error in failing to sign the sentencing order until two days following it's filing and where trial court attempted to cover up the error by asserting a time bar on such plain error and ignoring such error by failing to address the issue.

6

ARGUMENT

ISSUE ONE

Whether trial court erred in imposing habitual offender enhanced sentence.

The statute in which Appellant was indicted and sentenced under, Miss. Code Ann. $\S97-17-23^2$ allowed that a defendant may be sentenced to a term of not less than three (3) years no more than twenty-five (25) years upon conviction. This sentence mandate statute contains no provisions for enhancement. Enhancement of such sentence would therefore be an additional and separate penalty. Here the trial court applied enhancement under a separate statute, Miss. Code Ann. $\S99-19-81$,³ without seeking the approval of a jury of Petitioner's peers as to the elements applied to warrant enhancement of such sentence and the statutory limit.

i) Intervening Decisions by United States Court

Appellant would submit that on March 28, 2000, the Supreme Court of the United States decided the case of <u>Apprendi v. New Jersey</u>, 530 U.S. 466, 120 s.ct. 2348 (2000). Where the court rendered a decision on the issue of use of prior convictions to increase penalty beyond that which is prescribed as the statutory maximum. The issue which the court faced in <u>Apprendi</u> was whether such an increase must be presented to and determined by a jury. The <u>Apprendi</u> court established that it should. The court found as follow on such issues:

 $^{^2}$ § 97-17-23. Burglary; breaking and entering inhabited dwelling. Every person who shall be convicted of breaking and entering the dwelling house or inner door of such dwelling house of another, whether armed with a deadly weapon or not, and whether there shall be at the time some human being in such dwelling house or not, with intent to commit some crime therein, shall be punished by imprisonment in the Penitentiary not less than three (3) years nor more than twenty-five (25) years.

³ § 99-19-81. Sentencing of habitual criminals to maximum term of imprisonment. Every person convicted in this state of a felony who shall have been convicted twice previously of any felony or federal crime upon charges separately brought and arising out of separate incidents at different times and who shall have been sentenced to separate terms of one (1) year or more in any state and/or federal penal institution, whether in this state or elsewhere, shall be sentenced to the maximum term of imprisonment prescribed for such felony, and such sentence shall not be reduced or suspended nor shall such person be eligible for parole or probation.

In sum, our reexamination of our cases in this area, and of the history upon which they rely, confirms the opinion that we expressed Jones. Other that the fact of a prior conviction, any fact that increases the penalty for a crime beyond the prescribed statutory maximum must be submitted to a jury, and proved beyond a reasonable doubt. With that exception, we endorse the statement of the rule set forth in the concurring opinions in that case: "[I]t is unconstitutional for a legislature to remove from the jury the assessment of facts that increase the prescribed range of penalties to which a criminal defendant is exposed. It is equally clear that such facts must be established by proof beyond a reasonable doubt." 526 U. S., at 252-253, 119 S. Ct. 1215 (opinion of STEVENS, J.); see a] id, at 253, 119 S. Ct. 1215 (opinion of SCALIA, J.).

The Supreme Court of the United States, in fact, found that such a fact as proof of prior conviction must be established by proof beyond reasonable doubt and must, as a matter of law, be submitted to a jury.⁴ While the <u>Apprendi</u> court noted that the principle dissent would reject the court's rule in <u>Apprendi</u> as being "meaningless formalism," because it can conceive of hypothetical statutes that would comply with the rule and achieve the same result as the New Jersey statute, the court

found that core concerns animating the jury and burden-of-proof requirements are absent from such a scheme.⁵ The similarity in the Mississippi habitual offender scheme and the New

⁴ Mississippi requires that habitual status be proven beyond reasonable doubt. <u>Sort v. State</u>, 929 So.2d 420 (Miss. App. 2006).

⁵ The principal dissent would reject the Court's rule as a "meaningless formalism," because it can conceive of hypothetical statutes that would comply with the rule and achieve the same result as the New Jersey statute. Post, at 17-20. While a State could, hypothetically, undertake to revise its entire criminal code in the manner the dissent suggests, post, at 18- extending all statutory maximum sentences to, for example, 50 years and giving judges guided discretion as to a few specially selected factors within that range- this possibility seems remote. Among other reasons, structural democratic constraints exist to discourage legislatures from enacting penal statutes that expose every defendant convicted of, for example, weapons possession, to a maximum sentence exceeding that which is, in the legislature's judgment, generally proportional to the crime. This is as it should be. Our rule ensures that a State is obliged "to make its choices concerning the substantive content of its criminal laws with full awareness of the consequence, unable to mask substantive policy choices" of exposing all who are convicted to the maximum sentence it provides. Patterson v. New York, 432 U. S., at 228-229, n. 13 (Powell, J., dissenting). So exposed, "[t]he political check on potentially harsh legislative action is then more likely to operate." Ibid. In all events, if such an extensive revision of the State's entire criminal code were enacted for the purpose the dissent suggests, or if New Jersey simply reversed the burden of the hate crime finding (effectively assuming a crime was performed with a purpose to intimidate and then requiring a defendant to prove that it was not, post, at 20), we would be required to question whether the revision was constitutional under this Court's prior decisions. See Patterson, 432 U. S., at 210; Mullaney v. Wilbur, 421 U. S. 684, 698-702. Finally, the principal dissent ignores the distinction the Court has often recognized, see, e.g., Martin v. Ohio, 480 U. S. 228 (1987), between facts in aggravation of punishment and facts in mitigation. See post, at 19-20. If facts found by a jury support a guilty verdict of murder, the judge is authorized by that jury verdict to sentence the defendant to the maximum sentence provided by the murder statute. If the defendant can escape the statutory maximum by showing, for example, that he is a war veteran, then a judge that finds the fact of veteran status is neither exposing the defendant to a deprivation of liberty greater than that authorized by the verdict according to statute, nor is the Judge imposing upon the defendant a greater stigma than that accompanying the jury verdict alone. See supra, at 16-17. Core concerns animating the jury and burden-of-proof requirements are thus absent from such a scheme.

pursuant to subsection c. of this section, c. or d., unless the ground therefor has been established at a hearing. At the hearing, which may occur at the time of sentencing, the prosecutor shall establish by a preponderance of the evidence that the weapon used or possessed was a firearm. In making its finding, the court shall take judicial notice of any evidence, testimony or information adduced at the trial, plea hearing, or other court proceedings and shall also consider the presentence report and any other relevant information. e. A person convicted of a third or subsequent offense involving State taxes under N.J.S., N.J.S., any other provision of this code, or under any of the provisions of Title 54 of the Revised Statutes, or Title 54A of the New Jersey Statutes, as amended and supplemented, shall be sentenced to a term of imprisonment by the court. This shall not preclude an application for and imposition of an extended term of imprisonment under N.J.S. if the provisions of that section are applicable to the offender. f. A person convicted of manufacturing, distributing, dispensing or possessing with intent to distribute any dangerous substance or controlled substance analog under N.J.S., of maintaining or operating a controlled dangerous substance production facility under N.J.S., of employing a juvenile in a drug distribution scheme under N.J.S., leader of a narcotics trafficking network under N.J.S., or of distributing, dispensing or possessing with intent to distribute on or near school property or buses under section I of P.L. 1987, c. 101 (C.), who has been previously convicted of manufacturing, distributing, dispensing or possessing with intent to distribute a controlled dangerous substance or controlled substance analog, shall upon application of the prosecuting attorney be sentenced by the court to an extended term as authorized by subsection c. of N.J.S., notwithstanding that extended terms are ordinarily discretionary with the court. The term of imprisonment shall, except as may be provided in N.J.S., include the imposition of a minimum term. The minimum term shall be fixed at, or between, one-third and one-half of the sentence imposed by the court or three years, whichever is greater, not less than seven years if the person is convicted of a violation of N.J.S., or 18 months in the case of a fourth degree crime, during which the defendant shall be ineligible for parole. The court shall not impose an extended term pursuant to this subsection unless the ground therefor has been established at a hearing. At the hearing, which may occur at the time of sentencing, the prosecutor shall establish the ground therefor by a preponderance of the evidence. In making its finding, the court shall take judicial notice of any evidence, testimony or information adduced at the trial, plea hearing, or other court proceedings and shall also consider the presentence report and any other relevant information. For the purpose of this subsection, a previous conviction exists where the actor has at any time been convicted under chapter 35 of this title or Title 24 of the Revised Statutes or under any similar statute of the United States, this State, or any other state for an offense that is substantially equivalent to N.J.S., N.J.S., N.J.S. , N.J.S. or section 1 of P.L. 1987, c. 101 (C.). g. Any person who has been convicted under subsection a. of N.J.S. of possessing a machine gun or assault firearm with intent to use it against the person of another, or of a crime under any of the following sections: N.J.S., N.J.S., N.J.S. b., N.J.S., N.J.S. a., N.J.S. a., N.J.S., N.J.S., N.J.S., N.J.S., who, while in the course of committing or attempting to commit the crime, including the immediate flight therefrom, used or was in possession of a machine gun or assault firearm shall be sentenced to a term of imprisonment by the court. The term of imprisonment shall include the imposition of a minimum term. The minimum term shall be fixed at 10 years for a crime of the first or second degree, five years for a crime of the third degree, or 18 months in the case of a fourth degree crime, during which the defendant shall be ineligible for parole. The minimum terms established by this section shall not prevent the court from imposing presumptive terms of imprisonment pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection f. of N.J.S. for crimes of the first degree. A person who has been convicted of an offense enumerated in this subsection and who used or possessed a machine gun or assault firearm during its commission, attempted commission or flight therefrom and who has been previously

Jersey habitual sentencing scheme requires that Apprendi be applied to this case. The New

Jersey statutes which were at issue in <u>Apprendi</u> provides:

2C:39-4. Possession of weapons for unlawful purposes a. Firearms. Any person who has in his possession any firearm with a purpose to use it unlawfully against the person or property of another is guilty of a crime of the second degree. b. Explosives. Any person who has in his possession or carries any explosive substance with a purpose to use it unlawfully against the person or property of another is guilty of a crime of the second degree. c. Destructive devices. Any person who has in his possession any destructive device with a purpose to use it unlawfully against the person or property of another is guilty of a crime of the second degree. c. Destructive devices. Any person who has in his possession any destructive device with a purpose to use it unlawfully against the person or property of another is guilty of a crime of the second degree. d. Other weapons. Any person who has in his possession any weapon, except a firearm, with a purpose to use it unlawfully against the person or property of another is guilty of a crime of the second has in his possession any best is possession any best of a crime of the second degree. d. Other weapons. Any person who has in his possession any person who has in his possession any meapon, except a firearm, with a purpose to use it unlawfully against the person or property of another is guilty of a crime of the third degree. e. Imitation firearms. Any person who has in his possession an imitation firearm under circumstances that would lead an observer to reasonably believe that it is possessed for an unlawful purpose is guilty of a crime of the fourth degree. Amended 1979, c. 179, § 3; 1989, c. 120, § 2.

2C:43-6. Sentence of imprisonment for crime; ordinary terms; mandatory terms a. Except as otherwise provided, a person who has been convicted of a crime may be sentenced to imprisonment, as follows: (1) In the case of a crime of the first degree, for a specific term of years which shall be fixed by the court and shall be between 10 years and 20 years; (2) In the case of a crime of the second degree, for a specific term of years which shall be fixed by the court and shall be between five years and 10 years; (3) In the case of a crime of the third degree, for a specific term of years which shall be fixed by the court and shall be between three years and five years; (4) In the case of a crime of the fourth degree, for a specific term which shall be fixed by the court and shall not exceed 18 months. b. As part of a sentence for any crime, where the court is clearly convinced that the aggravating factors substantially outweigh the mitigating factors, as set forth in subsections a. and b. of, the court may fix a minimum term not to exceed one-half of the term set pursuant to subsection a, or one-half of the term set pursuant to a maximum period of incarceration for a crime set forth in any statute other than this code, during which the defendant shall not be eligible for parole; provided that no defendant shall be eligible for parole at a date earlier than otherwise provided by the law governing parole. c. A person who has been convicted under a. of possession of a firearm with intent to use it against the person of another, or of a crime under any of the following sections: , , b., , a., a., , , who, while in the course of committing or attempting to commit the crime, including the immediate flight therefrom, used or was in possession of a firearm as defined in f., shall be sentenced to a term of imprisonment by the court. The term of imprisonment shall include the imposition of a minimum term. The minimum term shall be fixed at, or between, one-third and one-half of the sentence imposed by the court or three years, whichever is greater, or 18 months in the case of a fourth degree crime, during which the defendant shall be ineligible for parole. The minimum terms established by this section shall not prevent the court from imposing presumptive terms of imprisonment pursuant to f. (1) except in cases of crimes of the fourth degree. A person who has been convicted of an offense enumerated by this subsection and who used or possessed a firearm during its commission, attempted commission or flight therefrom and who has been previously convicted of an offense involving the use or possession of a firearm as defined in d., shall be sentenced by the court to an extended term as authorized by c., notwithstanding that extended terms are ordinarily discretionary with the court. d. The court shall not impose a mandatory sentence

convicted of an offense involving the use or possession of any firearm as defined in subsection d. of N.J.S., shall be sentenced by the court to an extended term as authorized by subsection d. of N.J.S., notwithstanding that extended terms are ordinarily discretionary with the court. h. The court shall not impose a mandatory sentence pursuant to subsection g. of this section, subsections d. of N.J.S. or N.J.S., unless the ground therefor has been established at a hearing. At the hearing, which may occur at the time of sentencing, the prosecutor shall establish by a preponderance of the evidence that the weapon used or possessed was a machine gun or assault firearm. In making its finding, the court shall take judicial notice of any evidence, testimony or information adduced at the trial, plea hearing, or other court proceedings and shall also consider the presentence report and any other relevant information. i. A person who has been convicted under paragraph (6) of subsection b. of of causing bodily injury while eluding shall be sentenced to a term of imprisonment by the court. The term of imprisonment shall include the imposition of a minimum term. The minimum term shall be fixed at, or between one-third and one-half of the sentence imposed by the court. The minimum term established by this subsection shall not prevent the court from imposing a presumptive term of imprisonment pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection f. of . Amended 1979, c. 178, § 85; 1981, c. 31, § 1; 1981, c. 290, § 38; 1981, c. 569, § 1; 1982, c. 119, § 1; 1987, c. 76, § 35; 1987, c. 106, § 12; 1988, c. 44, § 13; 1990, c. 32, § 6; 1993, c. 219, § 6.

2C:44-3 Criteria for Sentence of Extended Term of Imprisonment. The court may, upon application of the prosecuting attorney, sentence a person who has been convicted of a crime of the first, second or third degree to an extended term of imprisonment if it finds one or more of the grounds specified in subsection a., b., c., or f. of this section. If the grounds specified in subsection d. are found, and the person is being sentenced for commission of any of the offenses enumerated in N.J.S. c. or N.J.S. g., the court shall sentence the defendant to an extended term as required by N.J.S. c. or N.J.S. g., and application by the prosecutor shall not be required. The court shall, upon application of the prosecuting attorney, sentence a person who has been convicted of a crime under N.J.S. or N.J.S. to an extended term of imprisonment if the grounds specified in subsection g. of this section are found. The court shall, upon application of the prosecuting attorney, sentence a person who has been convicted of a crime to an extended term of imprisonment if the grounds specified in subsection h. of this section are found. The court shall, upon application of the prosecuting attorney, sentence a person to an extended term if the imposition of such term is required pursuant to the provisions of section 2 of P.L. 1994, c. 130 (C.). The finding of the court shall be incorporated in the record. a. The defendant has been convicted of a crime of the first, second or third degree and is a persistent offender. A persistent offender is a person who at the time of the commission of the crime is 21 years of age or over, who has been previously convicted on at least two separate occasions of two crimes, committed at different times, when he was at least 18 years of age, if the latest in time of these crimes or the date of the defendant's last release from confinement, whichever is later, is within 10 years of the date of the crime for which the defendant is being sentenced. b. The defendant has been convicted of a crime of the first, second or third degree and is a professional criminal. A professional criminal is a person who committed a crime as part of a continuing criminal activity in concert with two or more persons, and the circumstances of the crime show he has knowingly devoted himself to criminal activity as a major source of livelihood. c. The defendant has been convicted of a crime of the first, second or third degree and committed the crime as consideration for the receipt, or in expectation of the receipt, of anything of pecuniary value the amount of which was unrelated to the proceeds of the crime or he procured the commission of the offense by payment or promise of payment of anything of pecuniary value. d. Second offender with a firearm. The defendant is at least 18 years

of age and has been previously convicted of any of the following crimes: . , b., , a., a., , , , a., or has been previously convicted of an offense under Title 2A of the New Jersey Statutes or under any statute of the United States or any other state which is substantially equivalent to the offenses enumerated in this subsection and he used or possessed a firearm, as defined in f., in the course of committing or attempting to commit any of these crimes, including the immediate flight therefrom. e. (Deleted by amendment, P.L. 2001, c. 443). f. The defendant has been convicted of a crime under any of the following sections: N.J.S., N.J.S., N.J.S., N.J.S., N.J.S. a., N.J.S., N.J.S., N.J.S. b., N.J.S., N.J.S., and in the course of committing or attempting to commit the crime, including the immediate flight therefrom, the defendant used or was in possession of a stolen motor vehicle, g. The defendant has been convicted of a crime under N.J.S. or N.J.S. involving violence or the threat of violence and the victim of the crime was 16 years of age or less. For purposes of this subsection, a crime involves violence or the threat of violence if the victim sustains serious bodily injury as defined in subsection b. of N.J.S., or the actor is armed with and uses a deadly weapon or threatens by word or gesture to use a deadly weapon as defined in subsection c. of N.J.S., or threatens to inflict serious bodily injury. h. The crime was committed while the defendant was knowingly involved in criminal street gang related activity. A crime is committed while the defendant was involved in criminal street gang related activity if the crime was committed for the benefit of, at the direction of, or in association with a criminal street gang, "Criminal street gang" means three or more persons associated in fact. Individuals are associated in fact if (1) they have in common a group name or identifying sign, symbol, tattoo or other physical marking, style of dress or use of hand signs or other indicia of association or common leadership, and (2) individually or in combination with other members of a criminal street gang, while engaging in gang related activity, have committed, conspired or attempted to commit, within the preceding three years, two or more offenses of robbery, car jacking, aggravated assault, assault, aggravated sexual assault, sexual assault, arson, burglary, kidnapping, extortion, or a violation of chapter 11, section 3, 4, 5, 6 or 7 of chapter 35 or chapter 39 of Title 2C of the New Jersey Statutes regardless of whether the prior offenses have resulted in convictions. The court shall not impose a sentence pursuant to this subsection unless the ground therefore has been established by a preponderance of the evidence established at a hearing, which may occur at the time of sentencing. In making its finding, the court shall take judicial notice of any testimony or information adduced at the trial, plea hearing or other court proceedings and also shall consider the presentence report and any other relevant information. Amended 1979, c. 178, § 95; 1981, c. 31, § 3; 1990, c. 32, § 8; 1990, c. 87, § 4; 1993, c. 132, § 2; 1994, c. 127, § 2; 1994, c. 130, § 4; 1995, c. 211, § 3; 1997, c. 120; 1999, c. 160, § 4; 2001, c. 443, § 8, eff. Jan. 11, 2002.

2C:43-7 Sentence of imprisonment for crime; extended terms. a. In the cases designated in section, a person who has been convicted of a crime may be sentenced, and in the cases designated in subsection e. of section 2 of P.L. 1994, c. 130 (C.), in subsection b. of section 2 of P.L. 1995, c. 126 (C.) and in the cases designated in section 1 of P.L. 1997, c. 410 (C.), a person who has been convicted of a crime shall be sentenced, to an extended term of imprisonment, as follows: (1) In case of aggravated manslaughter sentenced under subsection c. of N.J.S.; or kidnapping when sentenced as a crime of the first degree under paragraph (1) of subsection c. of ; or aggravated sexual assault if the person is eligible for an extended term pursuant to the provisions of subsection g. of N.J.S. for a specific term of years which shall be between 30 years and life imprisonment; (2) Except for the crime of murder and except as provided in paragraph (1) of this subsection, in the case of a crime of the first degree, for a specific term of years which shall be between 20 years and life imprisonment; (3) In the case of a crime of the second

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