IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

WILLIE ROSS

FILED

APPELLANT

AUG 1 9 2008

VS.

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

NO. 2007-CP-2192-COA

他们的

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: LISA L. BLOUNT

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Ross failed to show that the circuit court's order denying his Successive Motion for Post-Conviction Relief was clearly erroneous. Ross filed the instant motion for post-conviction relief more than six years after entry of his guilty plea; therefore, it is barred by the statute of limitations as set forth in Mississippi Code Annotated section 99-39-5(2). Further, Ross' motion is procedurally barred as an impermissible second attempt to obtain post-conviction relief, as set forth in Mississippi Code Annotated section 99-39-27(9).

ARGUMENT

I. WHETHER THE SUCCESSIVE MOTION FOR POST CONVICTION RELIEF IS TIME-BARRED.

A circuit court may deny relief of a prisoner's motion for post-conviction relief without an evidentiary hearing where "... it plainly appears from the face of the motion, any annexed exhibits and the prior proceedings in the case that the movant is not entitled to any relief." Miss. Code Ann. § 99-39-11(2)(Rev. 2007). This Court will not disturb a circuit court's decision to deny relief on a motion for post-conviction relief absent a showing that the circuit court's decision was clearly erroneous. *Epps v. State*, 926 So.2d 242 (Miss.Ct.App.2005).

A motion for post-conviction relief that was not filed within three years after defendant's guilty plea was statutorily time-barred, absent any applicable exception to statute. *Jones v. State*, _So.2d_, 2008 WL 2582671(Miss.App.) As pointed out by the Lowndes County Circuit Court, the motion *sub judice* is time-barred pursuant to Mississippi Code Annotated section 99-39-27(9). Ross entered his guilty plea on May 23, 2002; the motion which is the subject of this appeal was filed on September 10, 2007, far past the expiration of the time in which to file such post-conviction requests for relief, unless it fits within some enumerated statutory exception. The circuit court was correct in finding that Owens failed to raise any arguments which would allow him to file his motion outside of the three-year time period. Section 99-39-5(2) states in part:

(2) A motion for relief under this article shall be made within three (3) years after the time in which the prisoner's direct appeal is ruled upon by the Supreme Court of Mississippi or, in case no appeal is taken, within three (3) years after the time for taking an appeal from the judgment of conviction or sentence has expired, or in case of a guilty plea, within three (3) years after entry of the judgment of conviction. Excepted from this three-year statute of limitations are those cases in which the prisoner can demonstrate either that there has been an intervening decision of the Supreme Court of either the State of Mississippi or the United States which would have actually adversely affected the outcome of his conviction or sentence or that he has evidence, not reasonably discoverable at the time of trial, which is of such nature

that it would be practically conclusive that had such been introduced at trial it would have caused a different result in the conviction or sentence. Likewise excepted are those cases in which the prisoner claims that his sentence has expired or his probation, parole or conditional release has been unlawfully revoked. Likewise excepted are filings for post-conviction relief in capital cases which shall be made within one (1) year after conviction...

Ross cites *Apprendi v. New Jersey*, 530 U.S. 466, 120 S.Ct. 2348, 147 L.Ed.2d 435 (2000) and *Blakely v. Washington*, 542 U.S. 296, 124 S.Ct. 2531, 159 L.Ed.2d 403 (2004) as intervening decisions by the United States Supreme Court for the proposition that his constitutional rights were violated because he was entitled to a jury trial to determine whether he was eligible for enhanced punishment under the state's habitual offender statute. Ross' argument is based on a misperception of the law. "The United States Supreme Court, the Mississippi Supreme Court, as well as this Court, have made clear that an offender has no entitlement to a jury trial on the issue of whether or not he qualifies for enhanced punishment under the habitual offender statute." *Smith v. State*, 963 So.2d 1168 (Miss.App., 2007) citing *Apprendi v. New Jersey*, 530 U.S. 466, 120 S.Ct 2348.

The Mississippi Supreme Court held in *Jackson v. State*, 965 So.2d 686, 690 (Miss.2007) that post-conviction relief petitions alleging an illegal sentence are not subject to the time bar. However, Ross' sentence was not illegal so as to except it from the time bar.

II. WHETHER THE SUCCESSIVE MOTION FOR POST CONVICTION RELIEF IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED AS A SUCCESSIVE WRIT.

Mississippi Code Annotated section 99-39-27(9) reads in part: "The dismissal or denial of an application under this section is a final judgment and shall be a bar to a second or successive application under this article." Excepted from the successive-writ bar are certain enumerated exceptions, such as an application filed regarding insanity prior to the execution of a sentence of death, intervening cases of either the United States Supreme Court or the Mississippi Supreme Court that would have actually adversely affected the outcome of conviction or sentence, or newly discovered evidence which was not reasonably discoverable at the time of trial. *Id*.

Ross filed his first motion for post-conviction relief on June 1, 2005. (See Certified Docket Entries in PCR Action 2002-0105-CV1 in CP 1-3). The circuit court denied the relief and summarily dismissed the motion. Ross appealed. On August 22, 2006 in *Ross v. State*, 936 So.2d 983 (Miss.App.,2006) this Court affirmed the trial court's denial for post-conviction relief. Ross filed this successive writ for-post conviction relief on September 10, 2007.

This Court previously held in *Johnson v. State*, 962 So.2d 87,89(¶12) (Miss.Ct.App.2007) that it will not overturn a denial of a motion for post-conviction relief without a showing that an exception to the successive-writ bar exists. Ross fails to cite any case that exempts his successive writ and none of the statutory exceptions apply. Therefore, the sub judice motion is procedurally barred as an impermissible second attempt to obtain post-conviction relief.

Any complaint about the alleged illegality of Ross' sentence could have been addressed in his first post-conviction proceeding. Regardless of whether Ross brought his present complaints about his sentence in the original motion, he was bound to have done so. The State invokes the doctrines of collateral estoppel or res judicata with respect to Ross' claims. The claims could and

should have been raised in the original motion for post-conviction relief.

CONCLUSION

Ross failed to establish that an intervening decision of either the United States Supreme Court or the Mississippi Supreme Court excepts the motion *sub judice* from the procedural time bar and successive writ bar for post-conviction relief pursuant to Mississippi Code Annotated sections 99-39-5(2) and 99-39-27(9). Based upon the arguments presented herein as supported by the record on appeal, the State would ask this reviewing court to affirm the trial court's denial of Ross' motion for post-conviction relief.